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St. Matthew's Cathedral is located on the north side of Rhode Island Avenue 3 
N.W., just east of the crossing of M Street and Connecticut Avenue. An 18 
foot alley at the west separates the church from the 11-story Longfellow 
Building designed by William Lescaze and built in 1940-41. East of the 
church and its rectory are rowhouses. A highrise office building is located 
south of the church across Rhode Island Avenue. Behind the church at the 
north is an alley and a row of carriage houses. The church is set back from 
the sidewalk about twenty feet, and its grassy yard slopes upward so that it 
is approximately 6 feet above the sidewalk.

St. Matthew's is the visual focal point of its section of the city. Its 
reen copper dome, rising to a height of 190 feet, can be seen for a con- 
iderable distance outlined against the sky. The red brick church designed 

in 1893 by C. Grant LaFarge shows a North Italian influence. Its eclectic 
design has a mixture of features borrowed from Byzantine, Romanesque, and 
Renaissance architecture. The exterior is relatively unadorned and its main 
effect comes from its geometric massing and from the materials used. In 
contrast, the interior has sumptuous ornamentation. The interior space with 
ligh tunnel-vaulted nave, transepts and chancel, with large round arches 
opening on to chapels, and with the high dome at the crossing has a spacious 
ness and coherency which caused the New York Architectural League to say in 
the 1890's that it was "one of the most beautiful church interiors of modern 
times."

The structure of the church consists of brick bearing walls resting on a con 
crete foundation. Piers at the corners buttress the nave, transepts, and 
chancel walls. The dome is carried on a drum supported by four large masonry 
piers, by four large arches, and by 70 foot iron beams. Steel beams support 
the concrete floor and the roof. The barrel vaults are plaster.

The geometric massing of St. Matthew's is one of its notable exterior fea 
tures. The nave, transepts and chancel form a Latin cross approximately 155 
feet by 136 feet. Each arm is 54 feet wide and the walls are 54 feet high. 
It is approximately 88 feet from the sidewalk to the ridgepole of the steep 
able roofs. Over the crossing an octagonal drum raises the ribbed copper 
iome high above the roof of the body of the church. The squinches which 
Dridge the corners of the square at the crossing and carry the drum are clear 
ly visible on the exterior. The dome carries a copper columniated lantern 
with its own dome. The Latin cross on the top of the lantern is 200 feet 
above the sidewalk.

The wings around the main body of the church help create a piling up effect 
which finds its climax in the main dome. Low roofed chapels with walls the 
height of two-story buildings occupy the space.between the arms of the Latin 
cross and visually appear to buttress the high walls of the main body of the 
building. These chapels cause the church to have an almost rectangular over 
all plan with some projections due to niches and wings. In 1939-40 a one- 
story, 31 foot high stone wing was added in front of the southeast chapel.
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

The Joint Committee on Landmarks has designated St. Matthew's Cathedral and 
Rectory at 1725-39 Rhode Island Avenue, N.¥., a Category II Landmark of 
Importance which contributes significantly to the cultural heritage and 
visual beauty of the District of Columbia. The red brick church designed by 

Grant La Farge in 1893 has eclectic features inspired by Italian churches. 
Ihe simplicity of its exterior contrasts with the rich decorations of the 
interior. Its imposing copper ribbed dome is one of the visual focal points 
of the Washington skyline. The cathedral, the principal church of the 
archdiocese of Washington since 1939, has been the site of a number of im 
portant services most notably the funeral of President Kennedy on November 
25, 1963. The rectory which was designed by La Farge and erected in 1910 is 
a handsome Renaissance Revival brick townhouse.

The Roman Catholic parish of St. Matthew's was established in 1839 to re 
lieve overcrowding at St. Patrick's Church. St. Matthew 1 s first church, at 
15th and H Street was built in 1838-40 and designed by Mattias Duffey of 
Georgetown. By the late 19th century the parish had outgrown this Greek Re 
vival building, and soon after Thomas Sim Lee began his parochial duties in 
1891 property was purchased for a new edifice. In December 1892, Lee accom 
panied by an architect went to Europe to determine the design of the new 
church building. By August 1893, the plans of C. Grant La Farge of the firm 
of La Farge and Heins were accepted.

La Farge (1862-1939) was the son of John La Farge, a well known painter and 
stained glass designer. After studying at the Massachusetts Institute of 
Technology and in the office of Henry H. Richardson, he began practicing 
architecture in New York City in 1884. With his partner, George L. Heins, 
La Farge won the competition for the design of the Cathedral of St. John the 
Divine in New York City. The cornerstone of this church was laid on Decem 
ber 27, 1892, so when La Farge designed St. Matthew's he was at a signifi 
cant point in his career.

In September 1893 ground was broken for St. Matthew's on Rhode Island Avenue 
just east of Connecticut Avenue. The building permit valued the construc 
tion at $80,000 and only covered part of planned building. On Thanksgiving 
Day, November 30, 1893, the cornerstone was laid at the corner of the east 
transept. ^By the spring of 1895 the transepts and crossing were complete, 
and on June 2^ 1895, the first mass was celebrated in the partially completec 
building. The main altar was located near the rear of the west transept.

(Continued on Form 10-300a, Page 3)
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;i5tion - St. Matthew's Cathedral

This wing contains a passage from the nave and the semi-octagonal chapel of 
St. Francis of Assisi. The chapel has a pyramidal roof surmounted by a Latin 
cross. In 1967-68 a similar stone wing was added in front of the southwest 
chapel. This wing designed by Johnson and Boutin contains the semi-octagonal 
baptistry and a passage leading to it from the nave. Attached at the northeast 
corner of the church is a tall, three-stage, octagonal smoke stack. East of 
the east transept is a one-story, rectangular, gable roofed wing containing the 
sacristry. A one-story, frame and glass passage probably added between 1924 
and 1948 connects the sacristy with the rectangular, three-story brick rectory.

A limited number of materials are employed on the exterior of the church and 
their colors are an important design element. All walls are a richly colored 
red brick laid in common bond except the octagonal wings, which have brown 
sandstone walls, and the frame and glass passage to the rectory. Trim is brown 
with several important exceptions. The copper which covers the dome and its 
lantern has developed a green patina, and the roofs of the stone wings are 
covered with a gray colored metal. Most eaves have copper copings.

Interesting features of the exterior include the pairs of Romanesque Revival 
design terra cotta columns between the bays of the drum. The gable end of the 
nave has a terra cotta modillion cornice which returns. A plain terra cotta 
cornice connects the returns to form the pediment. The rest of the nave, the 
transepts, and the chancel have copper modillion cornices. The sacristy has a 
plain box copper cornice. Chapels and niches have brick cornices, except the 
stone wings which have stone cornices surmounted by stone parapets. The main 
entrance in the nave's gable end (south facade) consists of three bronze doors 
with brownstone trim flanked by pairs of brownstone columns supporting a full 
brownstone entablature. Broad flights of gray granite and brick steps lead 
to the entrance. In the tympanum over the central door is a mosaic with red 
background of St. Matthew designed by John de Rosen and added in 1970. The 
south corners of the nave have rusticated ashlar brown sandstone facing to 
the level of the cornice of the entrance porch. Above, the corners have 
smooth ashlar brownstone facing. The corner piers buttressing the transepts 
and chancel have rusticated brownstone quoining and bands. These corner 
piers terminate at the clerestory level, and at the corners of the nave and 
west transept volutes are used to visually soften a slight step in. The one- 
bay, entrance porch to the west transept is rock faced ashlar, brownstone 
(and has a gable roof). Brownstone bands define the clerestory levels. The 
stone wings have rock faced ashlar foundations, a bold stone watertable, and 
smooth ashlar walls with quoining at the corners.

The church has relatively few windows. Its windows generally have round arches
and rock faced brownstone sills. There is a clerestory but the gable ends of
the transepts have false arcading at the clerestory level while the gable end

(Continued on Form 10-300a, page 2)

GP 0 921-7 24



UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF THE INTERIOR 
NATIONAL PARK SERVICE

IONAL REGISTER OF HISTORIC PLACES 

INVENTORY - NOMINATION FORM

(Continuation Sheet)

FOR NPS USE ONLY

t

Js 4 «v r*S
DATE

Description (Continued)

f the nave has four false openings at the clerestory level. The chancel's 
able end has no real or false openings. The south chapels attached to the 
ransepts and nave have three openings each on their south facades at their 
lerestory level. The west and east gable ends have three large openings be- 
ween the clerestory level and the entrance level. Most light enters the church 
hrough the windows in the drum of the dome. Each of the eight sides of the 
rum has three windows.

The fenestration of the stone wings differs and is the major assymmetrical fea- 
ure of the main (south) facade of the entire building. The east wing has an 
rcade of openings with round arches lighting the passage and a grouping of 
hree arched openings in an arched panel on the south side of the chapel. The 
est wing has four rectangular openings on the passage and three arched opening 
n the south side of the baptistry.

The interior of St. Matthew's is very impressive. The church seems almost to 
ave a central plan as the nave is not much longer than the transepts and the 
pace of the chapels between the arms of the Latin cross seem to merge with 
hat of the main body of the church because of the large openings. This link 
ing of the main body of the church and the chapels, the great height of the 
arrel vaults of the nave, transepts, and chancel, and the greater height of 
he dome at the crossing give the interior space a loftiness and airiness, 
ich materials cover wall surfaces and most ceiling and floors are elaborately 
iecorated. However, the church is rather dark. Most light enters through the 
tained glass windows in the drum of the Dome. Most other windows have trans- 
ucent alabaster, onyx or serpentine panels which create a softly modulated 
ight.

Chree round arches supported by red Verona marble columns with composite capi- 
als separate the Chapel of St. Anthony of Padua at the east from the nave. A 
similar arcade separates the nave from the Chapel of the Blessed Virgin at the 
\rest. Large openings lead from these chapels to the transepts. One large 
round arch supported on Breccia marble columns links the east transept with 
St. Joseph's Chapel at the northeast. A round arched opening at the west 
connects the chapel with the chancel. The chapel of the Holy Angels is located 
east of St. Joseph's Chapel on the mezzanine level. A large round arch 
supported on 24 foot marble columns links the Blessed Sacrament Chapel (formerly 
the Chapel of the Sacred Heart) at the northwest with the west transept. An 
arched opening partially filled with the organ balcony connects this chapel

th the chancel. The baptistry is separated at the southwest from the nave by 
a. narrow barrel vaulted passage and the chapel of St. Francis of Assisi at the 
outheast has a similar barrel vaulted passage. The sacristy, a rectangular 
room with exposed timber ceiling, is reached from a door at the east of the 
iast transept.

Interior decorative features are too numerous to be fully described and no 
attempt will be made to explain their iconography. Walls are faced with panels 

(Continued on Fo%m 10-300a, Page 3)___________
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of different colored marbles. The main body of the church has an elaborate 
moulded plaster cornice. Floors of the chancel and chapels are different 
colored marbles laid in geometric designs. The plaster barrel vaults of the 
navej transepts, and chancel have coffering and rosettes and are painted and 
gilded. The eight rib dome has elaborate decoration painted predominantly blue 
and white. Ceilings of chapels vary from the groin vaulting of the Chapel of 
St. Francis of Assisi to the three shallow elliptical vaults of the Chapel of 
the Blessed Virgin. Mosaics by Edwin H. Blashfield (1848-1936) are on the 
niche behind the main altar, on the lunette of the altar wall, and on the 
pendentives carrying the dome. Thomas LaFarge designed three frescoes in the 
Chapel of St. Francis of Assisi and six mosaics in the Chapel of the Blessed 
Virgin. The chapel of St. Anthony of Padua with colonnades of white Carrara 
marble was loosely modeled on the chapel with the tomb of St. Anthony in Padua, 
Italy. Mosaics were added in this chapel in 1963. Large murals are in the 
lunettes of the end walls of the nave and transepts and over the transept en 
trances to the Chapel of the Blessed Virgin and the Chapel of St. Anthony of 
Padua. Mosaics by John de Rosen are in the baptistry and the Chapel of the 
Blessed Sacrament. Most altars are elaborate and particularly noteworthy is 
the main altar. Its front is white marble with inlaid multicolored floral 
designs done by Indian craftsman. It was a gift of the Archbishop of Agra, 
India.

The rectory is a Renaissance Revival, free standing house with a very cubic 
appearance. Its walls are red brick laid in common bond in Flemish variation. 
The main (south) facade is three bays wide and has a very symmetrical arrange 
ment. The windows of the main facade and the corner bays of the side facades 
have elaborate browns tone trim. The central}brownstone, frontispiece entrance 
of the main facade has Doric columns, an arched doorway with a keystone with a 
carved angle's head, and a metal balcony. The first story is separated by a 
brownstone cornice with an acanthus leaf moulding. At the corners brick 
quoining is channeled to simulate stone. The first story windows have round 
arches and brownstone keystones. The second story trabeated windows have 
cartouches. The largest cartouche is over the central windows. The third- 
story's trabeated windows break the rinceau frieze. The eaves of the copper 
covered low hip roof overhang.

8. Significance

On June 14, 1898 the altar in the chapel of St. Anthony of Padua was blessed. 
Construction proceeded slowly and in 1903 the building had an almost U-shaped 
plan as the nave had not been built. The "U" was missing its northwest cor 
ner as the chapel there had not .been built.

The old church at 15th and H Streets, N.W., continued to be used until 1909 
when it was sold for $500,000. The Southern Building, a Category III Landmark 
was erected on this site in 1912.

(Continued on Form 10-300a, Page 4)
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8. Significance - Continued

The money from the sale of the old church enabled St. Matthew's to undertake a 
major building program in 1910. La Farge, now with the firm of La Farge and 
Morris, continued to be the church's architect. By 1913 the nave, the north 
west chapel, the dome, and the rectory had been constructed. On April 1, 1913, 
the church was dedicated by Cardinal Gibbons.

Construction did not end in 1913 and later additions include the sacristy and 
passage to the rectory added between 1924 and 1948, the Chapel of St. Francis 
of Assisi added in 1939-40, and the baptistry added in 1967-68 designed by 
Johnson and Boutin.

Decoration and redecoration of the interior have continued to the present time. 
The date of dedication of a chapel or the date of the consecration of its 
altar indicates the date of the basic completion of the chapel's decoration, 
but does not mean that later decorations have not been added. As stated earli 
er the altar of the Chapel of St. Anthony of Padua was consecrated on July 14, 
1898. Mosaics, a new altar and crucifix were added to this chapel in the 
1960's. The main altar was consecrated on April 1, 1913, but was reconsecrated 
in 1960 after being enlarged. The altar in the Chapel of St. Joseph was con 
secrated May 10, 1916. This chapel was remodeled in 1962. The Chapel of the 
Sacred Heart was completed in 1928 but was remodeled and dedicated as the 
Blessed Sacrement Chapel on March 22, 1970. On November 29, 1936, the Chapel 
of the Blessed Virgin, also known as the Chapel of Our Lady, was dedicated. 
The Chapel of St. Francis of Assisi was consecrated on April 12, 1940. The 
Chapel of the Holy Angles dates from the 1960's. On July 28, 1968, the 
Baptistry was dedicated.

On July 22, 1939, Pope Puis XII announced that the archdiocese of Washington 
was established and that St. Matthew's was its cathedral. At that time one 
archbishop served both the dioceses of Washington and of Baltimore. On 
November 15, 1947, Washington was made an independent archdiocese and St. 
Matthew's continues to be its cathedral.

A number of important services have taken place in St. Matthew's due to its 
being the Roman Catholic cathedral in the nation's capital. The most memorable 
was the funeral of President John F. Kennedy which was held there on November 
25, 1963. Today a memorial marks the location of Kennedy's casket during this 
service.
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